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Federal Summary 

 
Public Utility District No. 1 of Skagit County 
January 1, 2011 through December 31, 2011 

 
 
The results of our audit of Public Utility District No. 1 of Skagit County are summarized below in 
accordance with U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
An unqualified opinion was issued on the basic financial statements. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting: 
 

 Significant Deficiencies:  We reported no deficiencies in the design or operation of 
internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be significant deficiencies. 

 

 Material Weaknesses:  We identified no deficiencies that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. 

 
We noted no instances of noncompliance that were material to the financial statements of the 
District. 
 

FEDERAL AWARDS 
 
Internal Control Over Major Programs: 
 

 Significant Deficiencies:  We identified deficiencies in the design or operation of 
internal control over major federal programs that we consider to be significant 
deficiencies. 

 

 Material Weaknesses:  We identified no deficiencies that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. 

 
We issued an unqualified opinion on the District’s compliance with requirements applicable to its 
major federal program. 
 
We reported findings that are required to be disclosed under section 510(a) of OMB 
Circular A-133. 
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Identification of Major Programs: 
 
The following was a major program during the period under audit:  
 

CFDA No. Program Title 
  

97.036 Disaster Grants - Public Assistance Program 
 
The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs, as prescribed 
by OMB Circular A-133, was $300,000. 
 
The District did not qualify as a low-risk auditee under OMB Circular A-133. 
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Schedule of Federal Audit Findings and 

Questioned Costs 

 
Public Utility District No. 1 of Skagit County 
January 1, 2011 through December 31, 2011 

 
 

1. The District did not have adequate internal controls to ensure it complied 
with activities allowed, allowable costs and reporting requirements for its 
Disaster Grant program, resulting in questioned costs. 
 

CFDA Number and Title: 
97.036 – Disaster Grants – Public Assistance 
(Presidentially Declared Disasters) 

Federal Grantor Name: Federal Emergency Management Agency 

Federal Award/Contract Number: NA 

Pass-through Entity Name: 
Washington State Military Department, 
Emergency Management Division 

Pass-through Award/Contract 
Number: 

E07-824 - 1671-DR-WA 
D09-097 – 1817-DR-WA 

Questioned Cost Amount: $22,539 

 

Background 
 

In 2011, the District reported expenditures of $1,043,856 for the Disaster Grant program.  
Of that amount, $1,036,194 was related to a District construction project that was 
damaged by a flood in November 2006.  The District’s contractor’s actions to mitigate 
the storm damage incurred significant costs. The District paid the contractor for storm 
mitigation expenses that occurred outside the scope of the original contract.  The District 
then submitted a claim to the State Military Department Emergency Management 
Division, for reimbursement for storm-related costs.   
 

Description of Condition 
 
The District may charge to the grant only those activities and costs supported by 
appropriate documentation, demonstrating the activities and costs were actually incurred 
for the benefit of the project.  The District did not maintain invoices or statements 
properly supporting all expenditures included in the grant claim.  
 
The District was not able to fully provide satisfactory answers to audit inquiries, and 
referred us to third parties in an attempt to resolve audit issues.  
 

Cause of Condition 
 
District staff did not actively participate in the process of submitting claims to the grantor.  
Instead, it relied on its attorney and consultant to work with Emergency Management to 
identify and claim activities and costs for reimbursement.  This process did not ensure all 
activities and costs were properly supported with documentation. 
 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Washington State Auditor's Office 

3



Effect of Condition and Questioned Costs 
 
The lack of internal controls over the federal program resulted in higher audit costs due 
to our efforts to obtain documentation. 
 
The District could not support $22,539 in contractor personnel benefit costs, equipment 
rental costs, credit card purchases and taxes paid that it included in the claim. 
 

Recommendation 
 
We recommend the District take an active role in managing and monitoring grant 
requirements in the future to ensure all claims are supported by appropriate source 
documentation. 
 

District’s Response 
 
The Public Utility District No. 1 of Skagit County (PUD) does not agree with the 
conclusions of the auditor.  The grant funding came from the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA), and was passed through the state’s Emergency 
Management Division (EMD).  The funding was related to a flood that occurred in 2006, 
and the resulting damage to a large construction project.  When the flood occurred, the 
PUD was denied disaster funding by FEMA.  In 2011, the PUD’s attorney worked directly 
with EMD staff to appeal the denial of our 2006 FEMA grant application.  Once the 
appeal was granted, the same attorney worked directly with EMD staff to compile the 
documentation to support the amount of the grant claim for reimbursement.  The 
attorney is someone with several years’ experience working for the PUD on this specific 
construction project and has extensive knowledge and experience working with the costs 
associated with the project.  
 
The PUD did, in fact, monitor the process and had constant communication with the 
attorney and the EMD staff.  As the pass-through agency, the EMD reviewed and 
checked every number and all supporting documentation.  The PUD had no reason to 
question what the EMD approved for the grant.    
 

Auditor’s Remarks 
 
We reaffirm our finding.  It is the District’s responsibility to ensure all claims, including 
federal claims, are supported by appropriate supporting documentation.  We will review 
the District’s corrective action during our next audit. 
 

Applicable laws and Regulations 
 
U S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, Section 300, states in part: 
 

The auditee shall: 
 

(b) Maintain internal control over Federal programs that provides 
reasonable assurance that the auditee is managing Federal 
awards in compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of 
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contracts or grant agreements that could have a material effect on 
each of its Federal programs. 
 
(c) Comply with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts 
or grant agreements related to each of its Federal programs. 
 

Public Assistance Grant Agreement (grant no. E07-824), states in part: 
 

General Terms and Conditions, A.2 RECORDS AND REPORTS: 
 

a. The APPLICANT agrees to maintain all books, records, 
documents, receipts, invoices and all other electronic or written 
records necessary to sufficiently and properly reflect the 
APPLICANT’s contracts, contract administration, and payments, 
including all direct and indirect charges, and expenditures in the 
performance of this agreement. 

 
General Terms and Conditions, A.26 SINGLE AUDIT ACT REQUIREMENTS: 
 

APPLICANTS required to have an audit must ensure the audit is 
performed in accordance with Generally Accepted Auditing 
Standards (GAAS); Government Auditing Standards (Yellow 
Book) developed by the Comptroller General and the OMB 
Compliance Supplement . . . The APPLICANT shall maintain 
records and accounts so as to facilitate the audit requirement . . .  

 
Special Terms and Conditions, Article II – Documentation: 

 
The APPLICANT is required to retain all documentation which 
adequately identifies the source and application of Public 
Assistance funds, including the administrative allowance, for six 
years following the closure of this disaster grant.  For all projects 
and administrative allowance, documentation includes adequate 
accounting of actual costs and recoveries incurred. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal 

Control over Financial Reporting and on 

Compliance and Other Matters in Accordance 

with Government Auditing Standards 

 
Public Utility District No. 1 of Skagit County 
January 1, 2011 through December 31, 2011 

 
 
Board of Commissioners 
Public Utility District No. 1 of Skagit County 
Mount Vernon, Washington 
 
 
We have audited the basic financial statements of Public Utility District No. 1 of Skagit County, 
Washington, as of and for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, and have issued our 
report thereon dated September 14, 2012. 
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
 

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
 
In planning and performing our audits, we considered the District’s internal control over financial 
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our 
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial reporting.  Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial reporting. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the District's financial statements will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose 
described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies 
in internal control that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses.  
We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider 
to be material weaknesses, as defined above. 
 

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are 
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of the District’s compliance with certain 
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provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which 
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
 
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
This report is intended for the information and use of management, the Board of 
Commissioners, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities.  However, this report is a 
matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.  It also serves to disseminate 
information to the public as a reporting tool to help citizens assess government operations. 
 

 
BRIAN SONNTAG, CGFM 
STATE AUDITOR 
 
September 14, 2012 
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance 

with Requirements That Could Have a Direct 

and Material Effect on Each Major Program and 

on Internal Control over Compliance in 

Accordance with OMB Circular A-133 

 
Public Utility District No. 1 of Skagit County 
January 1, 2011 through December 31, 2011 

 
 
Board of Commissioners 
Public Utility District No. 1 of Skagit County 
Mount Vernon, Washington 
 
 

COMPLIANCE 
 
We have audited the compliance of Public Utility District No. 1 of Skagit County, Washington, 
with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and 
Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material 
effect on its major federal program for the year ended December 31, 2011.  The District’s major 
federal program is identified in the Federal Summary.  Compliance with the requirements of 
laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to its major federal program is the 
responsibility of the District’s management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
District’s compliance based on our audit. 
 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained 
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.  
Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program 
occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the District’s 
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances.  We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our 
opinion.  Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the District’s compliance with 
those requirements.  
 
In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for 
the year ended December 31, 2011.  However, the results of our auditing procedures disclosed 
an instance  of noncompliance with those requirements which is  required to be reported in 
accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which is described in the accompanying Schedule of 
Federal Audit Findings and Questioned Costs as Finding 1.  
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INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 
 
The management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable 
to federal programs.  In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District’s internal 
control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a 
major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance 
in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the District's internal control over compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type 
of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis.  
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material 
weaknesses as defined below. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.  However, we 
identified certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be 
significant deficiencies as described in the accompanying Schedule of Federal Audit Findings 
and Questioned Costs as Finding 1.  A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance 
is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type 
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 
 

The District's response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying 
Schedule of Federal Audit Findings and Questioned Costs.  We did not audit the District's 
response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 
 

This report is intended for the information of management, the Board of Commissioners, federal 
awarding agencies and pass-through entities.  However, this report is a matter of public record 
and its distribution is not limited.  It also serves to disseminate information to the public as a 
reporting tool to help citizens assess government operations. 

 
BRIAN SONNTAG, CGFM 
STATE AUDITOR 
 

September 14, 2012  
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Financial 

Statements  
 

Public Utility District No. 1 of Skagit County 
January 1, 2011 through December 31, 2011 

 
 
Board of Commissioners 
Public Utility District No. 1 of Skagit County 
Mount Vernon, Washington 
 
 
We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of  Public Utility District No. 1 of 
Skagit County, Washington, as of and for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, as 
listed on page 12.  These financial statements are the responsibility of the District’s 
management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based 
on our audits. 
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation.  We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of Public Utility District No. 1 of Skagit County, as of December 31, 2011 
and 2010, and the changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended 
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report on our 
consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and 
other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide 
an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and 
should be considered in assessing the results of our audits. 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 13 through 19 be presented to supplement the 
basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to 
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic or historical context.  We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards 
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generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management 
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency 
with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during the audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express 
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not 
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.  
 
Our audits were performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements 
that collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements.  The accompanying Schedule 
of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required 
by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, 
and Non-Profit Organizations.  This schedule is not a required part of the basic financial 
statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements.  The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the 
basic financial statements taken as a whole. 
 

 
BRIAN SONNTAG, CGFM 
STATE AUDITOR 
 
September 14, 2012 
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Financial Section 

 
Public Utility District No. 1 of Skagit County 
January 1, 2011 through December 31, 2011 

 
 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis – 2011 and 2010 
 
 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

Comparative Statement of Net Position – 2011 and 2010 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position – 

2011 and 2010 
Comparative Statement of Cash Flows – 2011 and 2010 
Notes to Financial Statements – 2011 and 2010 

 
 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards – 2011 
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards – 2011 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
The Management Discussion and Analysis of Public Utility District No. 1 of Skagit 
County (the District) provides an overview and analysis of the District’s financial 
activities for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010.  This information is 
presented in conjunction with the financial statements and notes that follow this 
section. 
 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS                        
 

 Capital contributions were $3,083,642 in 2011 compared to $1,433,914 in 
2010.  The largest capital contributions in 2011 were from grants.  The 
District experienced damage to its Skagit River Pump Station cofferdam 
during the November 2006 severe storms and flooding event.  At that 
time, the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) denied the 
District’s request for assistance to repair the damage.  In 2011, the District 
appealed the decision.  FEMA then reversed its original decision and the 
District received $1,062,291 in November 2011 and the remaining 
$142,522 in 2012.  The actual amount awarded to the District was 
$1,373,430 inclusive of the District’s local matching share of $168,616. 
 

 Capital contributions from donated plant was another large increase in 
2011 and was $699,909 more than 2010.  This increase was the result of 
several large developer projects being completed.  In 2010, the largest 
cash capital contributions were from system development fees of 
$534,130, which were $121,509 more than 2009.  However, in 2011, 
system development fees decreased by $47,125.   The District attributes 
this to be a result of a continued slow recovery.  
 

 Between 2011 and 2010 operating revenues decreased (1.41 percent) 
from $14,386,461 in 2010 to $14,183,368 in 2011.  Between 2010 and 
2009 operating revenues decreased (0.68 percent) from $14,484,967 in 
2009 to $14,386,461 in 2010.  These decreases are believed to be 
attributable to a combination of factors including general economic 
distress, home foreclosures, and the District’s continued water 
conservation message to the public.   

 

 The District’s operating expenses increased 9.34 percent during 2011 
compared to 7.00 percent in 2010.  These increases are partly due to an 
increase in employee medical benefits, two increases during 2011 for the 
employer’s required contribution to employee retirement, and an increase 
in depreciation expense for capital asset additions. 
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 For the year ended December 31, 2011 the District sustained a net 
operating loss of $396,697 compared to a net operating income of 
$1,051,443 in 2010.  As mentioned above, the loss was attributable to 
several factors including recognition of our net Other Post-Employment 
Benefits (OPEB) obligation of $212,911 and an unexpected decrease in 
residential water sales of $192,703 between 2011 and 2010.   
 

 Despite the operating loss, the District generated a positive cash flow of 
$115,511 in 2011 and 2012 budgeted operating income is projected to be 
$84,000.  While there were no rate increases in 2011, the District adopted 
a general rate increase of 4 percent beginning January 1, 2012.  The 
previous general rate increase was 3 percent and effective January 1, 
2010. 

 
 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
Basic Financial Statements 
 
The District’s basic financial statements are comprised of two components:  
1) Proprietary fund financial statements and 2) Notes to the financial statements.  
The District is a single-enterprise fund with voter-approved authority for both 
water and sewer, although the District does not have sewer operations at this 
time.  The District also has authority under the Revised Code of Washington1 to 
provide fiber-optic telecommunication services within the District.  
 
The financial statements of the District are designed to provide readers with a 
broad overview of the District’s finances, similar to statements of a private-sector 
business.  They have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.  Under this basis of 
accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned and 
expenses are recognized in the period in which they are incurred, regardless of 
the timing of related cash flows.  These statements offer both short-term and 
long-term financial statement information. 
 
The Statement of Net Position presents information on the District’s assets and 
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as “net position”.  
Increases or decreases in net position are useful indicators of the financial 
position of the District.  The statement also provides information about the nature 
and amount of investments in assets and about the obligations of the District. 
 
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position presents 
information on the District’s current and prior year revenues and expenses.  This 
statement measures the success of the District’s operation and its ability to 
recover its costs through user fees and other charges.   
                                                 
1
 RCW 54.16.330 Provision of Wholesale Telecommunication Services 
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The Statement of Cash Flows presents information about the District’s cash 
receipts and cash payments.  This statement reports net cash receipts from 
operations, investing, and financing operations, plus changes in cash balances 
during the year. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
The Notes to the Financial Statements provide a more comprehensive 
assessment of the District’s financial condition. 
 

 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 
Presented are three tables of comparative financial information, followed by an 
analysis of the data: 
 

 
CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 
_________________________________________________________ 

 
NET ASSETS 

 
  2011  2010  2009 

       
Current and Other Assets   $           19,825,120    $           19,953,247    $           18,661,999  

Capital Assets              142,724,543               143,021,377               143,631,862  

     Total Assets   $         162,549,663    $         162,974,624    $         162,293,861  

       

Current & Other Liabilities   $             2,272,259    $             2,585,217    $             2,795,560  

Current Portion of Debt                  2,250,941                   2,220,940                   2,281,606  

Long-term Debt                22,066,666                 24,317,606                 26,745,584  

     Total Liabilities   $           26,589,866    $           29,123,763    $           31,822,750  

       

TOTAL NET POSITION    $         135,959,797    $         133,850,861    $         130,471,111  
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NET ASSET DETAIL 

 
  2011  2010  2009 
       
Invested in Capital Assets, 
net of Debt 

 

 $         118,406,936  

 

 $         116,482,831  

 

 $         114,604,672  

Restricted Assets 

 

                   634,183  

 

                   629,269  

 

                   559,426  

Unrestricted Assets 

 

              16,918,678  

 

              16,738,761  

 

              15,307,013  

       TOTAL NET POSITION   $         135,959,797    $         133,850,861    $         130,471,111  

 
 
 
 
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

 

  2011  2010  2009 

       
Operating Revenues 

 

 $           14,183,368  

 

 $           14,386,461  

 

 $           14,484,967  

Nonoperating Revenues 
 

                   254,297  

 

                   382,639  

 

                   382,192  

     Total Revenues 
  $           14,437,665    $           14,769,100    $           14,867,159  

       
Operating Expenses 

 

 $           14,580,065  

 

 $           13,335,018  

 

 $           12,491,509  

Nonoperating Expenses 
 

                   832,306  

 

                   788,246  

 

                   519,806  

     Total Expenses 
  $           15,412,371    $           14,123,264    $           13,011,315  

       
Income (Loss) 

 

 $              (974,706) 

 

 $                645,836  

 

 $             1,855,844  

Capital Contributions 
 

                3,083,642  

 

                1,433,914  

 

                2,811,673  

Special Item 
 

                               -  

 

                1,300,000  

 

                               -  

       
Change in Net Position 

   $             2,108,936   $             3,379,750    $             4,667,517  

       

Total Net Position, January 1  

                
133,850,861  130,471,111  125,803,594 

       

Total Net Position, December 31  135,959,797  133,850,861  130,471,111 

 
 

Total Net Position may serve as a useful indicator of the District’s financial 
position.  At the close of 2011, the District’s total net position was $135,959,797 
as compared with $133,850,861 for 2010, an increase of $2,108,936.   
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The largest portion of the District’s Total Net Position is the classification 
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Debt.  This classification reflects the District’s 
investment in capital assets (land, plant, and equipment) less any remaining 
related debt.  The District uses its capital assets to provide services to its 
customers.  These assets are not available for future spending.  Although the 
District’s investments in capital assets are reported net of related debt, it should 
be noted that the resources needed to repay debt must be provided from other 
sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these 
liabilities.   
 
An additional portion of the District’s Total Net Position is in Restricted Assets 
(Other Assets in the Net Position table) which represent resources that are 
subject to external restrictions on how the funds may be used.  The District’s 
Restricted Assets are generally restricted for Capital purposes derived from 
grants or loans and for debt purposes.  The majority of both 2011 and 2010 
Restricted Assets are associated with Water Revenue Bonds interest which in 
2011 was $228,006 and in 2010 was $243,344.  The remaining funds are 
restricted for the District’s Bonds Sinking Fund and Bond Reserve.  In total, 
Restricted Assets increased slightly between 2011 and 2010 by $4,914 as 
compared to a much larger increase between 2010 and 2009 of $69,843 which is 
primarily attributable to recognition of the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency (FEMA) grant receivable for 2009 flood damage. 
 
The remainder of the District’s Total Net Position is Unrestricted Assets and may 
be used to meet the District’s ongoing obligations to customers and creditors.  
Unrestricted Assets increased in both 2011 and 2010 by $179,917 and 
$1,431,748, respectively. 
 
Nonoperating Revenue decreased in 2011 by $128,342 (33.54 percent) while 
Nonoperating Expense increased $44,060 (5.59 percent).  The decrease in 
Nonoperating Revenue is the result of a decrease in Miscellaneous Non-
operating Income.  This decrease was due to only a few transactions occurring in 
2010, but not in 2011 such as the District’s auction, reimbursement for purchased 
water, and the recognition of a Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act 
of 1985 (COBRA) employer credit. 
 
The increase in 2011 Nonoperating Expense is largely attributable to the 
District’s recognition of a Loss from Retirement of Assets.  The change between 
2010 and 2009 was a $447 (0.12 percent) increase in Nonoperating Revenue 
and a $268,440 (51.64 percent) increase in Nonoperating Expense.  The 
increase 2010 in Nonoperating Expense is the result of an increase in taxes and 
debt interest. 
 
The District continues to maintain a solid financial position, as indicated by the 
increase in Total Net Position.  
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
At the end of 2011 and 2010, the District had $142.7 million and $143.0 million, 
respectively, of capital assets, net of depreciation, invested in a broad range of 
utility capital assets, including its water treatment plant, transmission and 
distribution mains, water storage facilities, pump stations, administration facilities, 
and vehicle and equipment fleet.  This amount represents a decrease of 
$296,834 in 2011 and a decrease of $610,485 in 2010.  These decreases are 
primarily attributable to the District’s 2011 inventory of capital assets as well as 
retirement of assets that did not meet the District’s capitalization threshold of 
$5,000.   
 
This year’s major increases to depreciable assets (before depreciation) include: 
 

 Plant increase     $ 10,001,772  

 Equipment increase     $      408,495 
 

The major increases are primarily the result of the completion of a few multiyear 
projects and the corresponding removal from construction in progress.  
   
The District’s 2012 capital budget plans for investing an additional $8.8 million in 
capital improvements.  This plan includes: 
 

 Josh Wilson Road Transmission Pipeline Project 

 Annual plant replacement and upsizing of infrastructure  

 New financial and customer service software system  
 

The District was approved for a $4,687,000 Public Works Trust Fund (PWTF) 
loan to fund the Josh Wilson Road 18” Water Transmission Line.  As part of this 
loan agreement the District is required to pay $828,000 out of pocket.  All other 
capital improvements are expected to be paid for with existing assets.   
 
As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the District had three outstanding bond 
issues with an aggregate total outstanding of $9,930,000 and $10,780,000, 
respectively, with interest rates ranging from 2.75 to 5.82 percent.  The bonds 
are scheduled to be fully repaid by 2016, 2018 and 2029.  The District also has 
aggregate outstanding loans of $14,387,607 and $15,758,546, for 2011 and 
2010 respectively, with interest rates ranging from 0.5 to 1.5 percent and final 
maturity dates of 2021 and 2022. 
 
Additional information on the District’s Long-term Debt is included in Note 6, 
Notes to the Financial Statement.  Additional information on the District’s Capital 
Assets and Construction-in-Progress is in Notes 3 and 4. 
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND RATES 
 
The District’s annual budget, as approved by the Commission, outlines its plan 
for operations, maintenance, and growth, in order to provide quality potable water 
to the District’s customers for the present and foreseeable future. 
 
In considering the District’s budget for the year 2012, the Board of 
Commissioners and management used the following estimates: 
 

 Revenue from water sales and charges are expected to increase as a 
result of a 0.5 percent estimated growth factor for the District.  A rate 
increase of 4 percent or approximately $1.32 per month for an average 
residential customer in 2012.  

 

 Capital contributions are expected to be $1,281,000.   
 

 Operating expenses, excluding depreciation, are expected to increase in 
2012 approximately $398,846 over the 2011 year-end results.   

 

 Capital improvements for 2012 are budgeted at $8.8 million as previously 
noted.  The District plans to use the Public Works Trust Fund (PWTF) 
loan, existing cash, and future revenues to fund the capital budget plan for 
its ongoing capital improvements program.   

 
 
REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 
 
This financial report is designed to provide the District’s customers and creditors 
with a general overview of the District’s finances and to demonstrate the District’s 
accountability for the money it receives.  If you have any questions about the 
report or need additional financial information, contact the District Treasurer at: 
 
  Public Utility District No. 1 of Skagit County 
  Attention:  Treasurer 
  Post Office Box 1436 
  Mount Vernon, Washington  98273-1436 
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ASSETS

Current Assets: 2011 2010

Cash and Cash Equivalents 13,806,258$         13,681,365$         

Investments -                            -                            

Accounts Receivable (Net) 713,107                795,108                

Federal Stimulus Credit Receivable -                            35,508                  

Accrued Unbilled Revenues 1,034,699             981,756                

Inventory 1,200,062             1,156,371             

Prepaid Insurance 20,986                  22,832                  

Other Current and Accrued Assets 326,461                315,656                

Restricted Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents 453,492$              462,874$              

Grants Receivable 180,691                166,395                

Total Restricted Assets 634,183$              629,269$              

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 17,735,756$         17,617,865$         

Noncurrent Assets:

Preliminary Survey and Investigation 191,030$              141,723$              

Assessments Receivable 1,599,314             1,853,333             

Unamortized Debt Expense 299,020                340,326                

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated

Nonoperating Property 26,349                  61,203                  

Land and Land Rights 585,877                749,446                

Construction in Progress 3,859,378             9,707,989             

Earthen Impounding Reservoir 12,375,488           12,375,488           

Capital Assets Net of Accumulated Depreciation

Plant 119,547,870         113,421,804         

Equipment 6,329,581             6,705,447             

TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS 144,813,907$       145,356,759$       

TOTAL ASSETS 162,549,663$       162,974,624$       

PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1 OF SKAGIT COUNTY

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities: 2011 2010

Warrants Payable 111,570$              302,235$              

Accounts Payable 628,401                844,321                

Customer Deposits 164,435                171,763                

Accrued Taxes Payable 59,352                  64,386                  

Accrued Interest on Debt 267,446                286,318                

Accrued Compensated Absences 248,845                247,913                

Retainages Payable 4,994                    -                            

Deferred Revenue 57,759                  145,554                

Bonds and Loans Payable 2,250,941             2,220,940             

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,793,743$           4,283,430$           

Noncurrent Liabilities:

Other Postemployment Benefits 212,911$              -$                          

Accrued Compensated Absences 334,320                308,684                

Unamortized Debt Premium 182,226                214,043                

First Lien Bonds 9,050,000             9,930,000             

Long-term Loans 13,016,666           14,387,606           

TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 22,796,123$         24,840,333$         

TOTAL LIABILITIES 26,589,866$         29,123,763$         

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets 118,406,936$       116,482,831$       

Restricted for:

Debt Service 453,492                462,874                

Capital Projects 180,691                166,395                

Unrestricted 16,918,678           16,738,761           

TOTAL NET POSITION 135,959,797$       133,850,861$       

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1 OF SKAGIT COUNTY
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OPERATING REVENUES:

Water Sales 2011 2010

Residential - Multiple 9,824,749$       10,017,452$     

Commercial - Industrial - Farms 3,247,353         3,276,755         

Government 374,145            391,570            

Resale 73,340              77,534              

Irrigation 275,354            294,494            

Total Water Sales 13,794,941$     14,057,805$     

Other Water and Broadband Revenues 388,427            328,656            

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 14,183,368$     14,386,461$     

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Water Expenses

Supply 977,464$          880,940$          

Treatment 1,456,774         1,320,909         

Transmission and Distribution 1,956,332         1,625,978         

Broadband 26,744              12,927              

Customer Accounts 981,620            828,355            

Administrative and General 3,826,311         3,934,010         

Utility Taxes 698,460            721,085            

Depreciation Expense 4,656,360         4,010,814         

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 14,580,065$     13,335,018$     

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (396,697)$         1,051,443$       

NONOPERATING REVENUES:

Interest Income 30,415$            44,042$            

Interest, Penalty Income on LUDs 83,238              102,097            

Amortization of Premiums 35,526              38,826              

Misc Nonoperating Income and Grants 105,118            197,674            

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES 254,297$          382,639$          

NONOPERATING EXPENSES:

Miscellaneous Nonoperating Expense 764$                 3,605$              

Interest on Debt 576,803            627,626            

Amortization of Discounts 41,306              41,286              

Other Taxes 15,009              115,729            

Loss from Retirement of Assets 198,424            -                        

TOTAL NONOPERATING EXPENSES 832,306$          788,246$          

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS

AND SPECIAL ITEM (974,706)$         645,836$          

PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1 OF SKAGIT COUNTY

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

FOR YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS:

Nondonated Plant 146,734$          160,962$          

Donated Plant 1,156,177         456,268            

System Development Fees 487,005            534,130            

Services 81,125              116,159            

Local Utility Districts (12,509)             -                        

Grants 1,225,110         166,395            

TOTAL CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 3,083,642$       1,433,914$       

SPECIAL ITEM - See Note 15 -$                      1,300,000$       

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 2,108,936$       3,379,750$       

TOTAL NET POSITION, JANUARY 1 133,850,861$   130,471,111$   

TOTAL NET POSITION, DECEMBER 31 135,959,797$   133,850,861$   

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1 OF SKAGIT COUNTY

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

FOR YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010
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2011 2010

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Cash Received From Customers 14,480,464$   14,663,937$   

Cash Payments To Suppliers for Goods and Services (4,323,299)      (3,559,196)      

Cash Payments To Employees for Services (5,384,789)      (5,230,473)      

Cash Payments for Taxes (703,494)         (715,703)         

Other Operating Income 90,761            29,891            

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 4,159,643$     5,188,456$     

Cash Flows From Capital Financing Activities:

Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets (3,220,717)$    (2,983,758)$    

Principal Paid on Revenue Bond Maturities/Notes (2,220,941)      (2,688,644)      

Interest and Related Charges Paid on Debt (665,090)         (684,795)         

Proceeds From Bonds/Government Loans -                      200,000          

Proceeds From Grants/Fed Stimulus 1,317,337       51,881            

Special Item- See Note 15 1,300,000       

Proceeds from Customers for Capital Purposes(NetofRet) 714,864          811,251          

Net Cash Provided (Used) For Capital Financing Activities (4,074,547)$    (3,994,065)$    

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

Purchase of Investment Securities -$                    (490,000)$       

Proceeds From Sale and Maturities of Investment Securities -                      1,199,530       

Interest on Investments 30,415            44,042            

Net Cash Provided (Used) for Investing Activities 30,415$          753,572$        

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 115,511$        1,947,963$     

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 14,144,239$   12,196,276$   

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 115,511          1,947,963       

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 14,259,750$   14,144,239$   

PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1 OF SKAGIT COUNTY, WASHINGTON

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash

Provided by Operating Activities:

Net Operating Income(Loss) (396,697)$       1,051,443$     

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net

  Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

Depreciation 4,656,360       4,010,814       

Change in Assets and Liabilities

(Increase)Decrease in Accts Receivable, Other Assets 325,215          180,767          

(Increase)Decrease in Accrued Unbilled Revenues (52,943)           74,370            

(Increase)Decrease in Materials and Supplies (43,691)           178,173          

(Increase)Decrease in Prepayments and Advances 1,846              (5,486)             

(Increase)Decrease in Preliminary Survey Charges (49,307)           (120,624)         

Increase (Decrease) In Warrants Payable (190,665)         17,376            

Increase(Decrease) in Accounts Payable, Taxes and Other (303,386)         (198,377)         

Increase (Decrease) In OPEB 212,911          -                      

Total Adjustments 4,556,340       4,137,013       

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 4,159,643$     5,188,456$     

During the year 2011, plant assets of $1,156,177  were donated to the District.  

During the year 2010, plant assets of $456,268  were donated to the District.  

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1 OF SKAGIT COUNTY, WASHINGTON

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010
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                PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1 OF SKAGIT COUNTY 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 

 
 
These notes are an integral part of the accompanying financial statements. 
 
 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accounting policies of Public Utility District No. 1 of Skagit County (District) 
conform to generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applicable to 
proprietary funds of governments.  The District has elected to apply Financial 
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) guidance, issued after November 30, 1989, 
to the extent that it does not conflict with or contradict guidance of the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).   

GASB is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental 
accounting and financial reporting principles.  In June 1999, GASB approved 
Statement 34, Basic Financial Statements – and Management Discussion and 
Analysis – for State and Local Governments.  This and consecutive statements 
are reflected in the accompanying financial statements (including notes to 
financial statements).  The following is a summary of the most significant policies 
(including identification of those policies which result in material departures from 
generally accepted accounting principles):  
 
Reporting Entity 
 
The District is a municipal corporation governed by an elected three member 
board.  As required by generally accepted accounting principles, management 
has considered all potential component units in defining the reporting entity.  The 
District has no component units. 
 
Basis of Accounting and Presentation 
 
The accounting records of the District are maintained in accordance with 
methods prescribed by the State Auditor under the authority of Chapter 43.09 
RCW.   
 
The District uses the Uniform System of Accounts for Class A and B Water 
Utilities as prescribed by the National Association of Regulatory Utility 
Commissioners.  The District’s predominant business activity is the provision of 
water service to the residents of Mount Vernon, Burlington, Sedro Woolley, and 
surrounding rural areas.  The accompanying financial statements include the 
financial position and results of operations of all enterprise operations, which the 
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District manages.  The financial statements include, as well, the assets and 
liabilities of all funds for which the District has a custodial or trust responsibility. 
 
The District uses the full-accrual basis of accounting where revenues are 
recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred.  Capital 
asset purchases are capitalized and long-term liabilities are accounted for in the 
appropriate funds.   
 
Unbilled utility service receivables are recorded at year end.   
 
The District distinguishes between operating and non-operating revenues and 
expenses.  Operating revenues and expenses are defined as related to the sale 
of water to customers and to other services that are usually provided under 
standard rate schedules or by contractual arrangements.  Operating expenses 
for the District include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, 
utility taxes, and depreciation on capital assets.  Non-operating revenues and 
expenses include merchandising and contract services, assessment revenues 
and expenses, rental of property, interest income, and expenses and other items 
not usually directly related to the provision of water service.   
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the District considers all highly 
liquid investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or 
less when purchased to be cash equivalents. 
 
Utility Plant and Depreciation 
  
See Note 3 regarding capitalization, depreciation, and retirement policies. 
 
Restricted Funds 
 
In accordance with bond resolutions (and certain related agreements), separate 
restricted funds are required to be established.  The assets held in these funds 
are restricted for specific uses, including construction, debt service and other 
special reserve requirements.  Restricted Funds at year end 2011 and 2010 
include the following: 
 

 
2011 

 
2010 

 Bond Sinking Funds  $                  7,336 
 

 $                  1,805  

 Bond Reserve  218,150 
 

                  217,725  

 Fiscal Agency Deposits  228,006 
 

                  243,344  

 
 

  

 
 $               453,492  

 
 $               462,874  
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Receivables 
 
The District carries its receivables at actual billed amount.  It is the District’s 
policy to write off accounts as uncollectible after 90 days, at which time they are 
turned over to collection.  Any subsequently collected accounts reduce bad debt 
expense.  
 
At year end, the District calculates the percentage of sales during the year that 
have been referred to collection and the average recovery rate on those 
accounts so referred.  From this information, the District is able to estimate the 
amount of uncollectible sales occurring during the final 90 days of the year.  
During 2011, the rate of accounts sent to collection was 0.29 percent and the 
recovery of those accounts was 29.15 percent.  The 2010 rate for accounts sent 
to collection was 0.26 percent while the recovery rate was 35.66 percent. 
 
Inventories 
 
Inventories are valued at average weighted cost which approximates the market 
value. 
 
Investments 
 
Investments are reported at fair value based on quoted market prices for those or 
similar securities.  See Note 2 for additional investment disclosure. 
 
Compensated Absences 
 
Compensated absences are absences for which employees will be paid.  The 
District maintains a Personal Leave Plan for vacation, sick, and family leave 
purposes, recording unpaid leave for compensated absences as an expense and 
liability when incurred.   Personal Leave may be accumulated to a maximum of 
800 hours.  Any accumulated Personal Leave balance is paid to the employee at 
retirement or termination of employment.  The exception is for employees retiring 
from the PERS 1 Retirement System.  These employees may be paid a 
maximum of 240 hours compensated leave at retirement. 
 
The District maintains a Supplemental Leave Bank balance to be used only for 
purposes supplementary to the District’s short-term disability plan.  The 
Supplemental Leave Bank originated with accumulated sick pay existing at the 
change January 1997 to the Personal Leave Plan.  The old sick leave is non-
accruing and no portion is payable at termination of employment.  It is used 
solely to supplement short-term disability for those eligible.  The District cannot 
determine the likelihood or the amount of future payments.  
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Unamortized Debt Premium or Expense  
 
Premiums realized on bond issues and costs related to the sale of bonds are 
deferred and amortized over the lives of the various bond issues. 
 
Construction Financing 
 
The District is typically involved in the creation and construction of utility plant, to 
be paid by special assessments upon benefited properties, through the creation 
of Local Utility Districts (LUDs).  At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the District 
had no LUD projects in either the planning or construction stages.             
 
Purchase Commitments 
 
The District is currently not obligated under any long-term purchase or similar 
commitments. 
 
Use of Estimates   
 
The preparation of the financial statements, in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles, requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect amounts reported in the financial statements.  Actual results could 
differ from these estimates.   
 
 
NOTE 2 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 
 
Deposits 
 
The District’s deposits and certificates of deposit are entirely covered by the 
Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or by collateral held in a 
multiple financial institution collateral pool administered by the Washington Public 
Deposit Protection Commission (PDPC). 
 
Investments 
 
All investments of the District’s funds are obligations of the U.S. Government and 
its agencies, deposits with the Washington State Treasurer’s Local Government 
Investment Pool (LGIP), or deposits with Washington State financial institutions. 
 
The LGIP is an un-rated 2a-7-like pool, as defined by GASB 31.  As such, 
participants’ balances in the LGIP are not subject to interest rate risk, as the 
weighted average maturity of the portfolio will not exceed 90 days.  Custodial 
credit risk is the risk that in the event of a failure of the counterparty to an 
investment transaction the District would not be able to recover the value of the 
investment or collateral securities.  Per GASB 40 guidelines, the balances are 
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not subject to custodial credit risk.  The credit risk of the LGIP is limited as most 
investments are obligations of the U.S. Government, or are government-
sponsored enterprises, or insured demand deposit accounts and certificates of 
deposit.  Investments are either insured or held by a third-party custody provider 
in the LGIP’s name. 
 
As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the District had the following deposits and 
investments: 
 

2011 Investments 
 

Maturities 
 

Fair Value 

WA State Investment Pool  $          12,691,609  
 

 n/a  
 

 $          12,691,609  

Certificates of Deposit                              -  
 

 various  
 

                             -  

Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,568,141  
 

 n/a  
 

1,568,141  

 
 

   
 

Total  $          14,259,750  
   

 $          14,259,750  

      2010 Investments 
 

Maturities 
 

Fair Value 

WA State Investment Pool  $          12,532,893  
 

 n/a  
 

 $          12,532,893  

Certificates of Deposit                              -  
 

 various  
 

                             -  

Cash and Cash Equivalents                1,611,346  
 

 n/a  
 

               1,611,346  

      Total  $          14,144,239  
   

 $          14,144,239  

       
NOTE 3 - UTILITY PLANT AND DEPRECIATION – CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Capital assets are defined by the District as assets with initial individual cost of 
more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.   
 
Major expenses for capital assets, including capital leases (of which the District 
had none during the year) and major repairs that increase useful lives, are 
capitalized.  Maintenance, repairs, and minor renewals are accounted for as 
expenses when incurred.  
  
Utility plant in service and other capital assets are recorded at cost where the 
historical cost is known.  Where historical cost is not known, assets are recorded 
at estimated cost.  Donations by developers and customers are recorded at the 
contract price and donor cost or appraised value.   
 
Utility plant activity for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 was as 
follows: 
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2011 1-Jan Increase Decrease 31-Dec

Utility plant not being depreciated:

Non-operating property 61,203$           5,002$           (39,856)$         26,349$           

Land and land rights 749,446           30,300           (193,869)         585,877           

Earthen impounding reservoir 12,375,488      -                     -                       12,375,488      

Construction in progress 9,707,989        4,211,500      (10,060,111)   3,859,378        

Total utility plant not being depreciated 22,894,126$   4,246,802$   (10,293,836)$ 16,847,092$   

Utility plant being depreciated:

Plant 157,176,560$ 10,001,772$ (393,374)$       166,784,958$ 

Equipment 9,072,377        408,495         (766,604)         8,714,268        

Total utility plant being depreciated 166,248,937$ 10,410,267$ (1,159,978)$   175,499,226$ 

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Plant (43,607,851)$  (4,389,332)$  929,877$        (47,067,306)$  

Equipment (2,366,930)      (176,570)       158,813          (2,384,687)      

Salvage and Fiber (146,905)          (22,877)          -                       (169,782)          

Total accumulated depreciation (46,121,686)$  (4,588,779)$  1,088,690$     (49,621,775)$  

Total utility plant being depreciated, net 120,127,251   5,821,488      (71,288)           125,877,451   

TOTAL UTILITY PLANT, NET 143,021,377$ 10,068,290$ (10,365,124)$ 142,724,543$ 

2010 1-Jan Increase Decrease 31-Dec

Utility plant not being depreciated:

Non-operating property 61,203$           -$                   -$                     61,203$           

Land and land rights 749,446           -                     -                       749,446           

Earthen impounding reservoir 12,380,257      -                     (4,769)             12,375,488      

Construction in progress 36,442,639      6,044,338      (32,778,988)   9,707,989        

Total utility plant not being depreciated 49,633,545$   6,044,338$   (32,783,757)$ 22,894,126$   

Utility plant being depreciated:

Plant 130,187,473$ 27,574,159$ (585,072)$       157,176,560$ 

Equipment 7,016,062        2,599,122      (542,807)         9,072,377        

Total utility plant being depreciated 137,203,535$ 30,173,281$ (1,127,879)$   166,248,937$ 

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Plant (40,506,663)$  (3,861,690)$  760,502$        (43,607,851)$  

Equipment (2,579,562)      (211,169)       423,801          (2,366,930)      

Salvage and Fiber (118,993)          (27,912)          -                       (146,905)          

Total accumulated depreciation (43,205,218)$  (4,100,771)$  1,184,303$     (46,121,686)$  

Total utility plant being depreciated, net 93,998,317      26,072,510   56,424            120,127,251   

TOTAL UTILITY PLANT, NET 143,631,862$ 32,116,848$ (32,727,333)$ 143,021,377$ 
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The original cost of operating property retired or otherwise disposed of and the 
cost of installation, less salvage, is charged to accumulated depreciation.  
However, in the case of the sale of a significant operating unit or system, the 
original cost is removed from the utility plant accounts, accumulated depreciation 
is reduced by the accumulated depreciation related to the property sold, and the 
net gain or loss on disposition is credited or charged against income.  
 
An allowance for funds used during construction is capitalized as a part of the 
cost of utility plant.  While cash is not received currently from such allowance, it is 
realized under the rate-making process over the service life of the related 
property through increased revenue resulting from a higher rate base and higher 
depreciation expense.  The procedure is intended to remove the cost of financing 
construction activity from the income statement and to treat such cost in the 
same manner as construction labor and material costs.   
 
Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following 
estimated useful lives: 
 
 Asset         Years 
 Structures and improvements         
 (Treatment, pumping, transmission, and distribution)     50 
 Distribution mains, services, and meters          40 
 Intakes, wells, reservoirs, standpipes, and hydrants     30 
 Pumping equipment                    20 
 General plant, furniture, tools, lab, and other equipment    10 
 Transportation and power-operated equipment        6.67  
 
Initial depreciation on utility plant is recorded in the year subsequent to 
purchase/construction. 
 
Preliminary costs incurred for proposed projects are deferred pending 
construction of the facility.  Costs relating to projects ultimately constructed are 
transferred to utility plant; charges that relate to abandoned projects are 
expensed.   
 
The financial statements reflect asset retirements resulting from a 2011 inventory 
of capital assets, as well as retirement of assets that did not meet the District’s 
capitalization threshold of $5,000.  Retirements related to the results of the 
District’s inventory of assets were $591,512 in 2011 and $458,251 in 2010.  
Retirements related to assets not meeting the District’s capitalization threshold 
were $553,776 in 2011 and $283,878 in 2010.  The loss from retirement of 
assets reflected in the financial statements is the net result of adjustments to our 
non-depreciable property which was a result of our 2011 inventory of capital 
assets.  These amounts are considered immaterial to the District’s financial 
statements taken as a whole.    
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NOTE 4 – CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 
 
Construction in progress represents expenses to date on projects whose 
authorizations total $12,294,404.   
 

Construction in progress for 2011 was comprised of the following: 

 
 

    
 

Project Expended Committed/ Required 

 
Budget through Remaining Future 

Project Description Authorization 12/31/2011 (Over) Financing 

Josh Wilson Rd, I-5 to Higgins Airport Way 5,820,000 374,509 5,445,491 0 

Financial / Utility Billing Upgrade 1,500,000  473,213  1,026,787 0 

Fredonia to I-5 Stage 2 1,300,000 1,347,793 (47,793) 0 

Moore St; Reed St to Township 469,928 345,382 124,546 0 

W Blackburn Rd; S 3rd St to Douglas St 327,273 7,728 319,545 0 

Hilynn Drive; Peterson Rd to Gull Dr. 300,211 206,696 93,515 0 

Various other projects 2,576,992 1,104,057 1,472,935 0 

     
Totals $12,294,404  $3,859,378  $8,435,026  $0  

 
 

Construction in progress for 2010 was comprised of the following: 

 
 

    
 

Project Expended Committed/ Required 

 
Budget through Remaining Future 

Project Description Authorization 12/31/2010 (Over) Financing 

     
Judy to MV Trans Line 7,269,000  5,208,759  2,060,241  $                 -  

Josh Wilson Rd, I-5 to Higgins Airport Way 5,441,980 205,312 5,236,668 4,687,000 

Fredonia to I-5 Stage 2 1,600,000 1,360,626 239,374                     - 

Gilligan Intake 2009 Winter Storms 358,496 414,359 (55,863)                     - 

Fredonia to I-5 Stage 1 265,000 147,502 117,498                     - 

Washington St. to Skagit St. 249,000 225,478 23,522                     - 

Various other projects 3,435,937 2,145,953 1,289,984                     -  

     
Totals $18,619,413  $9,707,989  $8,911,424  $4,687,000  

 
The Gilligan Intake project was funded by federal and state grants, insurance 
proceeds, and revenues of the District.  The Josh Wilson Road Transmission 
Pipeline Project is primarily funded through a Public Works Trust Fund Loan 
(PWTFL).  All other projects for the year ended 2011 and 2010 are primarily 
funded by revenues of the District.  
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NOTE 5 – SHORT-TERM DEBT 
 
During years 2011 and 2010, the District had no short-term debt, either new or 
continuing.  
 
 
NOTE 6 – LONG-TERM DEBT AND LIABILITIES 
 
Long-term Debt  
 
The District’s long-term debt at December 31, 2011 and 2010 are $24,317,607 
and $26,538,546 respectively.  The District’s long-term debt is comprised of 
bonds and loans.   
 
The District has one classification of secured bonds and those are the District’s 
revenue/partial assessment publicly issued bonds.  In October 2009, the district 
sold two issues of bonds:  2009A Bonds total $1,335,000, interest ranges from 
2.75 to 4 percent, and matures in July 2016; and 2009B Bonds total $3,660,000 
and require interest only payments until July 2017 when principal payments 
commence.  Maturity is in July 2029.  Interest ranges from 4.159 percent to 5.824 
percent; however, a federal tax credit of 35 percent reduces the effective rate to 
3.6 percent.  Payments are due in January and July of each year.  The proceeds 
from the 2009 bonds were used for the Skagit River Diversion project and the Judy 
to Mount Vernon transmission line. 
 
The secured bonds classification also includes 2008 Water Revenue Bonds.  The 
total outstanding at year end 2011 and 2010 are $5,250,000 and $5,915,000, 
respectively.  
 
For the year 2011, net operating income, excluding depreciation, plus interest 
received on investments, exceeded the annual debt obligation of the District by a 
factor of 1.86 and therefore, complies with bond covenants requiring a minimum 
factor of 1.25.  For the year 2010, the District’s factor was 2.30.   
 
There is $634,183 in restricted assets of the District as of December 31, 2011, of 
which $225,486 represent sinking funds and reserve requirements as contained 
in the various indentures.  At December 31, 2010, restricted assets totaled 
$629,269, of which $219,530 represented sinking funds and reserve 
requirements. 
 
In 2010, the Marblemount and the Bay View Bonds were paid in full. 
There are a number of other limitations and restrictions contained in the various 
bond indentures.  The District is in compliance with all significant limitations and 
restrictions.   
 
The schedules for first priority revenue/assessment bonds: 
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Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, 2008 
 

Payment 
   

Interest 
  Date   Principal   3.5 to 4.25% 
 

Total 

    July 1   Jan 1/July 1 
 

  

       2012 
 

         690,000  
 

        214,813  
 

          904,813  

2013 
 

         715,000  
 

        187,213  
 

          902,213  

2014 
 

         745,000  
 

        158,613  
 

          903,613  

2015 
 

         775,000  
 

        128,813  
 

          903,813  

2016 
 

805,000 
 

        98,813  
 

          903,813  

2017-2018 
 

           1,520,000  
 

               93,500  
 

            1,613,500  

       Total 
 

 $   5,250,000  
 

 $   881,765  
 

 $    6,131,765  

        
2009A Water Revenue Bonds 

 

Payment 
   

Interest 
  Date   Principal   2.75 to 4.0%   Total 

     July 1   Jan 1/July 1     

2012 
 

       190,000  
 

          38,300  
 

          228,300  

2013         200,000             30,700             230,700  

2014         200,000             22,700             222,700  

2015         210,000             17,200             227,200  

2016 
 

              220,000  
 

                  8,800  
 

                 228,800  

       Total 
 

 $ 1,020,000  
 

 $     117,700  
 

 $    1,137,700  
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2009B Water Revenue Bonds 
 

Payment 
   

Interest 
 

Federal Tax 
  Date 

 
Principal 

 
4.16 to 5.82% 

 
Credit Pymt 

 
Total 

    July 1   Jan 1/July 1         

2012 
 

                   -  
 

        202,901  
 

          (71,015) 
 

        131,886  

2013                     -           202,901             (71,015)          131,886  

2014                     -           202,901             (71,015)          131,886  

2015                     -           202,901             (71,015)          131,886  

2016    202,901  (71,015)          131,886 

2017-2021 
 

       1,215,000  
 

        908,870  
 

        (318,105) 
 

     1,805,765  

2022-2026 
 

      1,445,000  
 

        550,077  
 

        (192,527) 
 

     1,802,550  

2027-2029 
 

      1,000,000  
 

        117,936  
 

          (41,278) 
 

     1,076,658  

         Total 
 

 $   3,660,000  
 

 $   2,591,388  
 

 $      (906,985) 
 

 $   5,344,403  

          
In 2001, the District entered into a $10,000,000 loan agreement with the Public 
Works Trust Fund.  Loan proceeds of $9,500,000 were received in May 2001, 
with the remaining $500,000 to be paid upon completion of the projects.  Of the 
remaining amount, $400,000 was paid October 2009 and $100,000 was drawn in 
September 2010.  The loan partially funds a source-replacement project for 
improvements and expansion to the District facilities, including the Skagit River 
Diversion and additional filters and improvements at the Water Treatment Plant.  
The loan has a 20-year repayment term with an interest rate of 0.5 percent. 
 

Public Works Trust Fund 2001 Loan 
 

Payment 
   

Interest 
  Date   Principal   0.50%   Total 

    July 1   July 1     

       2012 
 

       542,425  
 

          27,121  
 

          569,546  

2013         542,424             24,409             566,833  

2014         542,424             21,697             564,121  

2015         542,424             18,985             561,409  

2016  542,424  16,273  558,697 

2017-2020 
 

           2,712,121  
 

                                                                               
40,682     

 
               2,752,803  

       Total 
 

 $ 5,424,242  
 

 $     149,167  
 

 $    5,573,409  

        
In 2002, the District entered into a second $10,000,000 loan agreement with the 
Public Works Trust Fund.  The original loan proceeds of $1,500,000 were 
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received in June 2002.  Additional payments of $8,000,000, $400,000, and 
$100,000 were drawn in May 2005, October 2009, and September 2010 
respectively.  The loan is partially funding a source-replacement project including 
improvements and expansion to District facilities, transmission lines, and control 
revisions at the Water Treatment Plant.    The loan has a 20-year repayment 
term with an interest rate of 0.5 percent. 
 

Public Works Trust Fund 2002 Loan 
 

Payment 
   

Interest 
  Date   Principal   0.50%   Total 

    July 1   July 1     

       2012 
 

         562,494  
 

          30,937  
 

          593,431  

2013           562,494             28,125             590,619  

2014           562,494             25,312             587,806  

2015           562,494             22,500             584,994  

2016  562,494  19,687  582,181 

2017-2021 
 

      2,812,473  
 

          56,249  
 

       2,868,722  

2022 
 

              562,494  
 

                 2,812  
 

               565,306  

       Total 
 

 $   6,187,437  
 

 $     185,622  
 

 $    6,373,059  

        
In December 2001, the District received two loans from the Drinking Water State 
Revolving Fund to fund Skagit View Village LUD #27.  The first, a $704,070 loan, 
financed the distribution system, and the second, for $64,619, funded corrosion 
control.  Both loans carry interest rates of 1.5 percent and mature October 1, 
2021.  
 

Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Loan 
Skagit View Village Distribution System LUD #27 

 
Payment 

   
Interest 

  Date 
 

Principal 
 

1.50% 
 

Total 

  
Oct 1 

 
Oct 1 

  

       2012 
 

39,728 
 

5,959 
 

45,687 

2013  39,728  5,363  45,091 

2014  39,728  4,767  44,495 

2015  39,728  4,171  43,899 

2016  39,728  3,575  43,303 

2017-2021 
 

              198,638 
 

                 8,939 
 

                  207,577 

       Total 
 

$    397,278 
 

$       32,774 
 

$       430,052 
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Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Loan 
Skagit View Village Corrosion Control LUD #27 

 
Payment 

   
Interest 

  Date 
 

Principal 
 

1.50% 
 

Total 

  
Oct 1 

 
Oct 1 

  

       2012 
 

            4,068  
 

               610  
 

             4,678  

2013              4,068                  549                4,617  

2014              4,068                  488                4,556  

2015              4,068                  427                4,495  

2016  4068  366  4,434 

2017-2021 
 

                 20,344  
 

                   915  
 

                     21,259  

       Total 
 

 $        40,684  
 

 $         3,355  
 

 $         44,039  

        
In 2001, the District received a $1,803,360 loan from the Drinking Water State 
Revolving Fund to finance the Clearwell #3 project at the Water Treatment Plant.  
The original loan proceeds of $1,683,814.10 were received in October 2005.  
The remaining $119,545.90 was drawn in October 2006.  The loan carries an 
interest rate of 1.5 percent and matures October 1, 2021.   

 
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Loan 

Clearwell LUD #3 
 

Payment 
   

Interest 
  Date   Principal   1.50%   Total 

    Oct 1   Oct 1     

       2012 
 

       106,520  
 

          15,978  
 

          122,498  

2013         106,520             14,380             120,900  

2014         106,520             12,782             119,302  

2015         106,520             11,185             117,705  

2016  106,520  9,587  116,107 

2017-2021 
 

              532,598  
 

              23,967  
 

                 556,565  

       Total 
 

 $ 1,065,198  
 

 $     87,879  
 

 $    1,153,077  

        
In 2002, the District received a $1,758,480 loan from the Drinking Water State 
Revolving Fund to finance construction of transmission lines.  The original loan 
proceeds of $137,732.84 were received in October 2005.  Additional payments of 
$1,239,203.68 and $381,543.48 were drawn in October 2007 and October 2008 
respectively.  The loan carries an interest rate of 1.5 percent and matures 
October 1, 2022.  
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Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Loan 
Transmission Lines 

 
Payment 

   
Interest 

  Date   Principal   1.50%   Total 

    Oct 1   Oct 1     

       2012 
 

         110,538  
 

          18,239  
 

          128,777  

2013           110,538             16,581             127,119  

2014           110,538             14,923             125,461  

2015           110,538             13,265             123,803  

2016  110,538  11,607  122,145 

2017-2021 
 

         552,692  
 

33,161  
 

          585,853  

2022 
 

              110,538  
 

                1,658  
 

               112,196  

       Total 
 

 $   1,215,920 
 

 $     109,434  
 

 $    1,325,354  

        
In February 2008, the District received a $77,520 loan from the Drinking Water 
State Revolving Fund to finance improvements to the Water Treatment Plant 
Controls.  The loan carries an interest rate of 1.5 percent and matures October 1, 
2022. 
 

Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Loan 
Water Treatment Plant Controls 

 
Payment 

   
Interest 

  Date   Principal   1.50%   Total 

    Oct 1   Oct 1     

       2012 
 

           5,168  
 

              853  
 

              6,021  

2013             5,168                 775                 5,943  

2014             5,168                 698                 5,866  

2015             5,168                 620                 5,788  

2016  5,168  543  5,711 

2017-2021 
 

         25,840  
 

              1,550 
 

27,390  

2022 
 

                  5,168  
 

                      78  
 

                      5,246  

       Total 
 

 $      56,848  
 

 $         5,117  
 

 $         61,965  
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SUMMARY OF LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
 

    
Current  

 
Long-term 

  

    
Portion   Debt   Total  

2008 Water Revenue Bonds 
 

 $     690,000  
 

 $  4,560,000  
 

 $  5,250,000  

2009A Water Revenue Bonds 
 

        190,000  
 

     830,000  
 

     1,020,000  

2009B Water Revenue Bonds 
 

                  -  
 

     3,660,000  
 

     3,660,000  

2001 Public Works Trust Fund Loan         542,425  
 

     4,881,817  
 

     5,424,242  

2002 Public Works Trust Fund Loan         562,494  
 

     5,624,943  
 

     6,187,437  

DWSRF SVV LUD #27 Distribution Loan           39,728  
 

        357,550  
 

        397,278  

DWSRF SVV LUD #27 Corrosion Loan            4,068  
 

          36,616  
 

          40,684  

DWSRF Clearwell LUD #3 Loan 
 

        106,520  
 

     958,678  
 

     1,065,198  

DWSRF Transmission Lines Loan         110,538  
 

     1,105,382  
 

     1,215,920  

DWSRF WTP Control Revisions Loan            5,168  
 

          51,680  
 

          56,848  

        
                  -  

Totals 
   

 $  2,250,941     $22,066,666  
 

 $24,317,607  

          
Changes in Long-Term Liabilities            
 
During the year ended December 31, 2011, the following transpired in long-term 
liabilities: 
 

 
Beginning 
Balance   

Ending 
Balance Due Within 

 1/1/2011 Additions Reductions 12/31/2011 One Year 
      
Total Bonds Payable                   $  10,780,000                  -   $   (850,000) $9,930,000    $   880,000  
      

Public Works Trust          
  Fund Loans  $12,716,598                   - $(1,104,917) $11,611,681    $1,104,919  

Drinking Water State      

   Rev Fund Loans        3,041,948                  -          (266,022)        2,775,926          266,022  

Total Loans Payable:  $  15,758,546                  - $  (1,370,939) $  14,387,607    $ 1,370,941  
      
Compensated         
Absences        556,597            26,568                  -          583,165  

                        
248,845 

OPEB                 - 212,911                 - 212,911                 - 
      
Total Long-term 
Liabilities  $  27,095,143   $     239,479  $   (2,220,939) $   25,113,683  $  2,499,786  
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During the year ended December 31, 2010, the following transpired in long-term 
liabilities: 
 

 

Beginning 
Balance 

  

Ending 
Balance Due Within 

 
1/1/2010 Additions Reductions 12/31/2010 One Year 

Revenue/Partial 
  Assessment Bonds  $ 11,550,000   $                -   $    (770,000)   $ 10,780,000   $      850,000  

Assessment Debt         565,128                     -         (565,128)                     -                     -  

Total Bonds Payable:  $ 12,115,128   $                -   $ (1,335,128)   $ 10,780,000   $      850,000  

      Public Works Trust  
  Fund Loans  $ 13,604,093   $   200,000                 $ (1,087,495)   $ 12,716,598   $   1,104,918  

Drinking Water State  
  Rev Fund Loans       3,307,969                     -         (266,021)        3,041,948          266,022  

Total Loans Payable:  $ 16,912,062   $   200,000               $ (1,353,516)   $ 15,758,546   $   1,370,940  

      Compensated Absences  $      594,830  $                -         $      (38,233)  $      556,597   $      247,913  

      Total Long-term 
Liabilities  $ 29,622,020   $      200,000   $ (2,726,877)   $ 27,095,143   $   2,468,853  

       
 
NOTE 7 – LOCAL UTILITY DISTRICTS  
 
The District receives annual installments on outstanding assessments, which 
have remaining terms ranging from 1 to 18 years.  Outstanding assessment 
balances carry annual interest rates ranging from 1.75 to 7.25 percent.  On ten 
LUDs (Gunderson #12, Big Lake #16, Panorama #20, Big Rock #21, Alger #22, 
Stackpole/Cedardale Road #25, Skagit View Village #27, Marblemount #28, Bay 
View #29, and Samish Park #30), there are 41 participants who are more than 
two years in arrears on their installment payments with a cumulative total of 
$104,597.80.  At 2010 year end there were eight LUDs more than two years 
delinquent which included 19 participants with a cumulative total of $69,763.74.  
It is noted that there is minimal risk of collection on any LUD amounts since the 
LUD forms a lien on each individual property.      
 
 
NOTE 8 – TELECOMMUNICATION SERVICES 
 
The District provides wholesale telecommunications (fiber optic) services within 
the District to Diversint Inc, an Internet Service Provider (ISP), for resale.  
Service commenced in 2009.  Revenue, expense, and capital investment activity 
for years 2011 and 2010 are as follows: 
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2011 2010 

Operating Revenues: 
       Wholesale Fiber Services to ISP $6,000 $5,500 

   Operating Expenses: 
       Administration and General $26,744 $12,927 

   Capital Investment: 
       Current Year $0 $8,000 

     Cumulative (since 2000) $575,286 $575,286 

 
 
NOTE 9 - RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 
 
At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the District’s statement of net position reports 
Restricted Assets of $634,183 and $629,269, respectively.  None of the assets 
are restricted by enabling legislation.   
 
 
NOTE 10 – PENSION PLAN      
 
Substantially all (district) full-time and qualifying part-time employees participate 
in one of the following statewide retirement systems administered by the 
Washington State Department of Retirement Systems, under cost-sharing 
multiple-employer public employee defined benefit and defined contribution 
retirement plans. The Department of Retirement Systems (DRS), a department 
within the primary government of the State of Washington, issues a publicly 
available Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) that includes financial 
statements and required supplementary information for each plan. The DRS 
CAFR may be obtained by writing to: Department of Retirement Systems, 
Communications Unit, P.O. Box 48380, Olympia, WA 98504-8380; or it may be 
downloaded from the DRS website at www.drs.wa.gov. The following disclosures 
are made pursuant to GASB Statements No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by 
State and Local Government Employers and No. 50, Pension Disclosures, an 
Amendment of GASB Statements No. 25 and No. 27. 
 
Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) Plans 1, 2, and 3 
 
Plan Description 
The Legislature established PERS in 1947.  Membership in the system includes: 
elected officials; state employees; employees of the Supreme, Appeals, and 
Superior courts (other than judges currently in the Judicial Retirement System); 
employees of legislative committees; community and technical colleges, college 
and university employees not participating in higher education retirement 
programs; judges of district and municipal courts; and employees of local 
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governments.  PERS retirement benefit provisions are established in Chapters 
41.34 and 41.40 RCW and may be amended only the State Legislature.   
 
PERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement system comprised of three 
separate plans for membership purposes: Plans 1 and 2 are defined benefit 
plans and Plan 3 is a defined benefit plan with a defined contribution component.  
 
PERS members who joined the system by September 30, 1977 are Plan 1 
members.  Those who joined on or after October 1, 1977 and by either, February 
28, 2002 for state and higher education employees, or August 31, 2002 for local 
government employees, are Plan 2 members unless they exercise an option to 
transfer their membership to Plan 3.  PERS members joining the system on or 
after March 1, 2002 for state and higher education employees, or September 1, 
2002 for local government employees have the irrevocable option of choosing 
membership in either PERS Plan 2 or PERS Plan 3. The option must be 
exercised within 90 days of employment. An employee is reported in Plan 2 until 
a choice is made. Employees who fail to choose within 90 days default to PERS 
Plan 3. Notwithstanding, PERS Plan 2 and Plan 3 members may opt out of plan 
membership if terminally ill, with less than five years to live.  
 
PERS Plan 1 and Plan 2 defined benefit retirement benefits are financed from a 
combination of investment earnings and employer and employee contributions.  
 
PERS Plan 1 members are vested after the completion of five years of eligible 
service. Plan 1 members are eligible for retirement after 30 years of service, or at 
the age of 60 with five years of service, or at the age of 55 with 25 years of 
service. The monthly benefit is 2 percent of the Average Final Compensation 
(AFC) per year of service. (AFC is the monthly average of the 24 consecutive 
highest-paid service credit months.) The retirement benefit may not exceed 60 
percent of AFC. The monthly benefit is subject to a minimum for PERS Plan 1 
retirees who have 25 years of service and have been retired 20 years, or who 
have 20 years of service and have been retired 25 years. Plan 1 members 
retiring from inactive status prior to the age of 65 may receive actuarially reduced 
benefits. If a survivor option is chosen, the benefit is further reduced. A Cost of 
Living Allowance (COLA) is granted at age 66 based upon years of service times 
the COLA amount, which is increased 3 percent annually. Plan 1 members may 
also elect to receive an optional COLA that provides an automatic annual 
adjustment based on the Consumer Price Index. The adjustment is capped at 3 
percent annually. To offset the cost of this annual adjustment, the benefit is 
reduced. 
 
PERS Plan 1 provides duty and non-duty disability benefits. Duty disability 
retirement benefits for disablement prior to the age of 60 consist of a temporary 
life annuity payable to the age of 60. The allowance amount is $350 a month, or 
two-thirds of the monthly AFC, whichever is less. The benefit is reduced by any 
workers’ compensation benefit and is payable as long as the member remains 
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disabled or until the member attains the age of 60. A member with five years of 
covered employment is eligible for non-duty disability retirement. Prior to the age 
of 55, the allowance amount is 2 percent of the AFC for each year of service 
reduced by 2 percent for each year that the member’s age is less than 55. The 
total benefit is limited to 60 percent of the AFC and is actuarially reduced to 
reflect the choice of a survivor option. A Cost of Living Allowance is granted at 
age 66 based upon years of service times the COLA amount (based on the 
consumer Price Index), capped at 3 percent annually. To offset the cost of this 
annual adjustment, the benefit is reduced.  
 
PERS Plan 1 members can receive credit for military service.  Members can also 
purchase up to 24 months of service credit lost because of an on-the-job injury.  
 
PERS Plan 2 members are vested after the completion of five years of eligible 
service. Plan 2 members are eligible for normal retirement at the age of 65 with 
five years of service. The monthly benefit is 2 percent of the AFC per year of 
service. (AFC is the monthly average of the 60 consecutive highest-paid service 
months.)  
 
PERS Plan 2 members who have at least 20 years of service credit and are 55 
years of age or older are eligible for early retirement with a reduced benefit. The 
benefit is reduced by an Early Retirement Factor (ERF) that varies according to 
age, for each year before age 65.  
 
PERS Plan 2 members who have 30 or more years of service credit and are at 
least 55 years old can retire under one of two provisions:  
 

 With a benefit that is reduced by 3 percent for each year before age 65.   

 With a benefit that has a smaller (or no) reduction (depending on age) that 
imposes stricter return-to-work rules.  

 
PERS Plan 2 retirement benefits are also actuarially reduced to reflect the 
choice, if made, of a survivor option. There is no cap on years of service credit; 
and a Cost of Living Allowance is granted (based on the Consumer Price Index), 
capped at 3 percent annually.  
 
The surviving spouse or eligible child or children of a PERS Plan 2 member who 
dies after leaving eligible employment having earned ten years of service credit 
may request a refund of the member’s accumulated contributions. Effective  
July 22, 2007, said refund (adjusted as needed for specified legal reductions) is 
increased from 100 percent to 200 percent of the accumulated contributions if the 
member’s death occurs in the uniformed service to the United States while 
participating in Operation Enduring Freedom or Persian Gulf, Operation Iraqi 
Freedom.  
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PERS Plan 3 has a dual benefit structure. Employer contributions finance a 
defined benefit component and member contributions finance a defined 
contribution component. The defined benefit portion provides a monthly benefit 
that is 1 percent of the AFC per year of service. (AFC is the monthly average of 
the 60 consecutive highest-paid service months.)  
 
Effective June 7, 2006, PERS Plan 3 members are vested in the defined benefit 
portion of their plan after ten years of service; or after five years of service, if 
twelve months of that service are earned after age 44; or after five service credit 
years earned in PERS Plan 2 prior to June 1, 2003. Plan 3 members are 
immediately vested in the defined contribution portion of their plan.  
 
Vested Plan 3 members are eligible for normal retirement at age 65, or they may 
retire early with the following conditions and benefits: 
 

 If they have at least ten service credit years and are 55 years old, the 
benefit is reduced by an ERF that varies with age, for each year before 
age 65. 

 If they have 30 service credit years and are at least 55 years old, they 
have the choice of a benefit that is reduced by 3 percent for each year 
before age 65; or a benefit with a smaller (or no) reduction factor  
(depending on age) that imposes stricter return-to-work rules.  

 
PERS Plan 3 defined benefit retirement benefits are also actuarially reduced to 
reflect the choice, if made, of a survivor option. There is no cap on years of 
service credit and Plan 3 provides the same Cost of Living Allowance as Plan 2.  
  
PERS Plan 3 defined contribution retirement benefits are solely dependent upon 
the results of investment activities.  
 
The defined contribution portion can be distributed in accordance with an option 
selected by the member, either as a lump sum or pursuant to other options 
authorized by the Director of the Department of Retirement Systems.  
 
PERS Plan 2 and Plan 3 provide disability benefits. There is no minimum amount 
of service credit required for eligibility. The Plan 2 monthly benefit amount is 2 
percent of the AFC per year of service. For Plan 3, the monthly benefit amount is 
1 percent of the AFC per year of service.  
 
These disability benefit amounts are actuarially reduced for each year that the 
member’s age is less than 65, and to reflect the choice of a survivor option. 
There is no cap on years of service credit, and a Cost of Living Allowance is 
granted (based on the Consumer Price Index) capped at 3 percent annually. 
PERS Plan 2 and Plan 3 members may have up to ten years of interruptive 
military service credit; five years at no cost and five years that may be purchased 
by paying the required contributions. Effective July 24, 2005, a member who 
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becomes totally incapacitated for continued employment while serving the 
uniformed services, or a surviving spouse or eligible children, may apply for 
interruptive military service credit. Additionally, PERS Plan 2 and Plan 3 
members can also purchase up to 24 months of service credit lost because of an 
on-the-job injury.  
 
PERS members may also purchase up to five years of additional service credit 
once eligible for retirement. This credit can only be purchased at the time of 
retirement and can be used only to provide the member with a monthly annuity 
that is paid in addition to the member’s retirement benefit.  
 
Beneficiaries of a PERS Plan 2 or Plan 3 member with ten years of service who 
is killed in the course of employment receive retirement benefits without actuarial 
reduction, if the member was not at normal retirement age at death. This 
provision applies to any member killed in the course of employment, on or after 
June 10, 2004, if found eligible by the Department of Labor and Industries.  
 
A one-time duty-related death benefit is provided to the estate (or duly 
designated nominee) of a PERS member who dies in the line of service as a 
result of injuries sustained in the course of employment, or if the death resulted 
from an occupational disease or infection that arose naturally and proximately out 
of said member’s covered employment, if found eligible by the Department of 
Labor and Industries.  
 
There are 1,197 participating employers in PERS. Membership in PERS 
consisted of the following as of the latest actuarial valuation date for the plans of 
June 30, 2010: 
 

Retirees and Beneficiaries Receiving Benefits     76,899 

Terminated Plan Members Entitled to But Not Yet Receiving 
Benefits 

28,860 

Active Plan Members Vested 105,521 

Active Plan Members Non-vested 51,005 

     Total 262,285 

  Funding Policy 
Each biennium, the state Pension Funding Council adopts PERS Plan 1 
employer contribution rates, PERS Plan 2 employer and employee contribution 
rates, and PERS Plan 3 employer contribution rates. Employee contribution rates 
for Plan 1 are established by statute at 6 percent for state agencies and local 
government unit employees, and at 7.5 percent for state government elected 
officials. The employer and employee contribution rates for Plan 2 and the 
employer contribution rate for Plan 3 are developed by the Office of the State 
Actuary to fully fund Plan 2 and the defined benefit portion of Plan 3. All 
employers are required to contribute at the level established by the Legislature. 
Under PERS Plan 3, employer contributions finance the defined benefit portion of 
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the plan and member contributions finance the defined contribution portion.  The 
Plan 3 employee contribution rates range from 5 percent to 15 percent, based on 
member choice.  Two of the options are graduated rates dependent on the 
employee’s age.  As a result of the implementation of the Judicial Benefit 
Multiplier Program in January 2007, a second tier of employer and employee 
rates was developed to fund, along with investment earnings, the increased 
retirement benefits of those justices and judges that participate in the program.  
 
The methods used to determine the contribution requirements are established 
under state statute in accordance with Chapters 41.40 and 41.45 RCW.  
 
The required contribution rates expressed as a percentage of current-year 
covered payroll, as of December 31, 2011, are as follows: 
 

 PERS Plan 1 PERS Plan 2 PERS Plan 3 

Employer* 7.25%** 7.25%** 7.25%*** 

Employee   6.00%****    4.64%**** ***** 

 
* The employer rates include the employer administrative expense fee currently set at 0.16%.  
** The employer rate for state elected officials is 10.80% for Plan 1 and 7.25% for Plan 2 and Plan 3.  
*** Plan 3 defined benefit portion only.  
**** The employee rate for state elected officials is 7.50% for Plan 1 and 4.64% for Plan 2.  
***** Variable from 5.0% minimum to 15.0% maximum based on rate selected by the PERS 3 member. 

 
Both the District and the employees made the required contributions.  The 
District’s required contributions for the years ended December 31 were: 
 

  
PERS Plan 1 

 
PERS Plan 2 

 
PERS Plan 3 

       2011 
 

$ 12,286.47 
 

$237,254.83 
 

$   25,941.86 

       2010 
 

$ 14,731.08 
 

$199,856.38 
 

$   20,165.74 

       2009 
 

$ 25,985.56 
 

$284,810.78 
 

$   29,124.97 

        
NOTE 11 – LAWSUITS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
The District’s financial statements include all material liabilities. There are no 
material contingent liabilities to record.  
 
In 2009, the District filed a lawsuit in Federal District Court seeking damages 
from the engineering firm responsible for the Skagit River Diversion project. In 
September 2010, a $1.3 million settlement agreement was paid to the District. 
See Note 15 – Special Item.   
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The District is also involved in ordinary and routine litigation incidental to its 
operations and believes the resolution of these matters will not materially affect 
the financial position of the District.   In the opinion of management, the District’s 
insurance policies are adequate to pay all known or pending claims.  
 
The District participates in a number of federal and state-assisted programs.  
These grants are subject to audit by the grantors or their representatives.  Such 
audits could result in requests for reimbursement to grantor agencies for 
expenditures disallowed under the terms of the grants.  District management 
believes that such disallowances, if any, will be immaterial.  
 
 
NOTE 12 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
The District has evaluated subsequent events through the report date.  In April 
2012, the District accepted the bid of SRV Construction Inc. for the construction 
of the Josh Wilson Road 18’ Water Transmission Pipeline Project in the amount 
of $3,650,305.   
 
The District was approved for a $4,687,000 Public Works Trust Fund (PWTF) 
loan to fund the Josh Wilson Road 18” Water Transmission Pipeline in 2011.  As 
part of this loan agreement the District is required to pay $828,000 out of pocket.  
All other capital improvements are expected to be paid for with existing assets.   
 
 
NOTE 13 – RISK MANAGEMENT  
 
The District is a member of the Public Utility Risk Management Services Self-
Insurance Fund (PURMS).  Chapter 48.62 RCW authorizes the governing body 
of any one or more governmental entities to form together into or join a pool or 
organization for the joint purchasing of insurance, and/or joint self-insuring, 
and/or joint hiring or contracting for risk management service to the same extent 
that they may individually purchase insurance, self insure, or hire or contract for 
risk management services.  An agreement to form a pooling arrangement (Pool 
or Liability Pool) was made pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 54.16 RCW, 
and interlocal government agreements.  The Pool was formed on December 31, 
1976, when certain Public Utility Districts (PUDs) in the State of Washington 
joined together by signing an Agreement to pool their self-insured losses and 
jointly purchase insurance and administrative services.  As of December 31, 
2011 there were 18, 17, and 12 members in the Liability, Property, and Health & 
Welfare pools, respectively.  For 2010 year end there were 19, 18, and 12 
members in the Liability, Property, and Health & Welfare pools, respectively.   
 
The Pool provides liability, property, and health and welfare insurance coverage 
for its members and their employees under an agreement entitled “PURMS Joint 
Self-Insurance Agreement” (SIA).  
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Liability Risk Pool   
Under the SIA, from 1977 through 1995, the Liability Pool’s self-insured retention 
(or Liability Coverage Limit) was $500,000 per occurrence.  Effective January 1, 
1996, PURMS increased the Liability Coverage Limit to $1,000,000 per 
occurrence.  This was the Coverage Limit in effect for 2011, and in effect as of 
December 31, 2011. 
 
The Liability Pool is financed through assessments of its participating members 
(Liability Assessment) in accordance with the terms of the Liability General 
Assessment Formula.  Liability Assessments are levied at the beginning of each 
calendar year to replenish the Liability Pool to the Designated Liability Pool 
Balance.  In addition, Liability Assessments are levied at any time during the year 
that the actual Liability Pool Balance becomes $500,000 less than the 
Designated Liability Pool Balance.  For 2011, the Designated Liability Pool 
Balance was $3,000,000 and in 2010, $2,000,000.   
 
In November 2008, the PURMS Board approved an increase in the liability pool 
balance to $3,000,000.  This will be affected by additional assessments of 
$165,000 for five years and $175,000 for the sixth year. The first assessment 
was due January 2009.   
 
Property Risk Pool 
PURMS provides property insurance coverage for its members participating in 
the Property Risk Pool in accordance with the terms of the SIA.  Under the SIA, 
from its inception in 1997 to the present, the Property Pool has had a self-insured 
retention (or Property coverage Limit) of $250,000 per property loss.   
 
At all times, PURMS maintains Excess Property Insurance for its members in the 
Property Pool.  For both 2011 and 2010, the amount of the Excess Property 
Insurance was $150 million, with excess coverage attaching at the $250,000 
Property Coverage Limit for all Property Losses except those subject to 
increased retention levels for certain property risks.   
 
In accordance with Washington State regulatory requirements applicable to 
public entity risk pools, on an annual basis, PURMS engages an independent 
qualified actuary to determine the claim financing levels and liabilities for unpaid 
claims and claims adjustments expense for the Liability Pool.  A copy of the 
Liability Pool Actuarial Report is provided to the Washington State Risk Manager 
and made available to the Washington State Auditor’s Office. 
 
Health & Welfare Risk Pool  
PURMS provides health and welfare insurance coverage for the employees of 
each of its members participating in the Health & Welfare Risk Pool (H&W Pool) 
in accordance with the terms of the SIA and the terms of each member’s 
respective coverage booklet provided to its employees.  The H&W Pool was 
established as one of PURMS’ risk pools effective March 31, 2000. 
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Under the H&W assessment formula, each month, each member of the H&W 
Pool is assessed for (a) the cost the H&W Pool incurred during the preceding 
month for the H&W claims for such member’s employees; and (b) for such 
member’s share of Shared H&W Costs.  Shared H&W Costs are administrative 
expenses incurred by the H&W Pool, premiums for stop-loss insurance, PPO 
charges, and Shared H&W Claims. 
 
The exposure of each H&W Pool Member to the H&W Claims Costs of its 
employees is limited by two different stop-loss points.  The first is established 
annually by the Excess Stop-Loss Insurance that the H&W Pool acquires and 
maintains for its members.  For both 2011 and 2010 the H&W Pool Individual 
Stop Loss Point was $200,000 per employee and the H&W Pool Aggregate Stop 
Loss Point was $12,331,936 in 2011 and $12,032,316 in 2010 for the combined 
H&W Claims Costs of the employees of members of the H&W Pool. 
 
Each of PURMS risk pools is audited annually by the State Auditor’s Office.  In 
addition, as required by State regulations, PURMS provides quarterly financial 
reports to the State Risk Manager reflecting the claims and administrative 
expenses of the Risk Pools.  Bi-annually, the State Risk Manager performs its 
own audit of PURMS’ risk pools.  There have been no settlements in excess of 
the District’s insurance coverage in any of the three preceding years. 
 
Unemployment Benefits 
Unemployment benefits are provided by the District as a “reimbursable employer” 
with the Washington State Department of Employment Security.  Unemployment 
compensation is paid to eligible individuals by the Washington State Department 
of Employment Security and the District is subsequently billed for actual costs.  
As a result, the District will experience periods of fluctuating costs, depending on 
the number and size of eligible claims each year.  These costs are immaterial to 
the District’s financial statements.  
 
 

NOTE 14 –POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSION 
BENEFIT  
 

The District implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 45 
Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits 
Other Than Pensions, prospectively, as of December 31, 2009.  
 
Plan Description 
In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 10, the District provides 
Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB), in accordance with RCW 41.04.208, to 
all employees who are vested members in the Public Employees Retirement 
System (PERS), who leave the employment of the District and are eligible to 
immediately receive benefits under PERS.  This single-employer health and 
welfare benefit plan is provided through the Public Utility Risk Management 
Services (PURMS).  Commissioners who serve at least one six-year term and 
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have been re-elected for a second term of office shall be eligible for coverage 
under this policy.  Plan benefits for retirees are reduced upon eligibility for 
Medicare, regardless of whether or not Medicare enrollment occurs.  The 
surviving spouse of a retiree who is covered at the time of the retiree’s death may 
continue his/her coverage until the time of the surviving spouse’s death.  A new 
spouse to a surviving spouse is not eligible for this coverage.  In the event of a 
divorce after retirement, the spouse of the retired employee will not be eligible to 
remain on the District’s plan.  COBRA benefits will be offered to the divorced 
spouse according to statutory regulations.   
 
Funding Policy 
The District establishes contribution requirements on an annual basis.  As of 
December 31, 2011 and 2010, the District had twenty and eighteen retirees, 
respectively, enrolled in the District’s health and welfare plan.  The premium 
charged to the retirees is based on the District’s experience for all members of its 
health and welfare plan, as determined by the PURMS Self-Insurance Fund.  
Costs in excess of the retirees’ contributions are covered by the District on a pay-
as-you-go financing plan.   
 
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation 
For both 2011 and 2010, the District’s annual OPEB costs of $181,017 and 
$180,714 were greater than the required retiree contributions.  The District’s 
annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, 
and the net OPEB obligation for 2011, 2010 and 2009 were as follows: 
 

Fiscal Year 
Ended 

Annual OPEB 
Cost 

Percentage of 
Annual OPEB 

Cost Contributed 

Net OPEB 
Obligation 

2011 $181,017 36.49% $212,911 

2010 $180,714 43.86% $208,404 

2009 $180,124 40.63% $106,944 

 
Funded Status 
As of December 31, 2009, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 
0% funded.  The accrued liability for benefits was $2.5 million, and the actuarial 
value of assets was $0, resulting in an Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability and 
Amortization (UAAL) of $2.5 million.  Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the 
value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence 
of events far into the future.  Examples include assumptions about future 
employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend.  Amounts determined 
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of 
the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared 
with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. 
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December 31, 2009 December 31, 2010 December 31, 2011

Determination of Annual Required Contribution

Normal cost at year end 97,412 97,412 97,412

Amortization of UAAL 82,712 82,712 82,712

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) 180,124 180,124 180,124

Determination of Net OPEB Obligation

Annual Required Contribution 180,124 180,124 180,124

Interest on prior year Net OPEB Obligation 0 4,278 8,336

Adjustment to ARC 0 (3,688)                   (7,443)                   

Annual OPEB Cost 180,124 180,714 181,017

Contribution made (73,180)                 (79,254)                 (176,510)                

Increase in Net OPEB Obligation 106,944 101,460 4,507

Net OPEB Obligation - beginning of year 0 106,944 208,404

Net OPEB Obligation - end of year 106,944 208,404 212,911

Valuation Date 
 

12/31/2009 

Actuarial Value of Assets  $ -  

Actuarial Accrued Liability 
 

$2,481,348 

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liabilities (UAAL) 
 

$2,481,348 

Funded Ratio 
 

0% 

Covered Payroll 
 

N/A 

UAAL As A Percentage of Covered Payroll 
 

N/A 

 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the 
substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) 
and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation.  The 
actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to 
reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities, consistent 
with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 
 
In the December 31, 2009 actuarial valuation, the Entry Age Normal Actuarial 
Cost method was used.  The actuarial assumptions used included a 4.00% 
discount rate, which is based upon the long-term investment yield on the 
investments that are expected to be used to finance the payment of benefits.  
Claims costs were estimated using a weighted average of actual payments made 
by the District from January 1, 2008 through December 31, 2010.  These were 
adjusted using an 8.3 percent annual medical trend.    
 
The UAAL is being amortized on a closed basis at the assumed discount rate.  
The remaining amortization period at December 31, 2009 was 30 years. 
 

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation 
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NOTE 15 – SPECIAL ITEM 
 
In 2010, the District completed a large capital project (known as the Skagit River 
Diversion project) that began in 1999 and was put into use in late January 2010.  
The project was complex and included legal conflicts.  In September 2010, the 
District received a $1.3 million settlement. 
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MCAG NO. 1797

 

1 2 3 4 5

Federal Agency/ Federal Program Other From Expenditures Foot

Pass-through Name CFDA Identification Pass-through From Note

Agency Name Number Number Awards Direct Awards Total Ref

FEMA/ Disaster Grants- E07-824

State Military Dept Public Assistance 97.036 1671-DR-WA 1,036,194      1,036,194    2, 3

(Presidentially Declared Disasters)

FEMA/ Disaster Grants- D09-097

State Military Dept Public Assistance 97.036 1817-DR-WA 7,662             7,662           2

(Presidentially Declared Disasters)

Total Awards 1,043,856$    -$                    1,043,856$  

The accompanying Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are an integral part of this schedule.

  Schedule 16

PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1 OF SKAGIT COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011
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MCAG NO. 1797

PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1 OF SKAGIT COUNTY

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

          For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

NOTE 1 -  BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The schedule is prepared on the same basis of accounting as the District's financial statements.  The 

District uses the full-accrual basis of accounting where revenues are are recognized when earned and

expenses are reognized when incurred. 

NOTE 2 - PROGRAM COSTS

The amounts shown as current year expenditures represent only the federal grant portion of the 

program costs.  Entire program costs, including the District's portion, are more than shown. 

NOTE 3 - FEDERAL GRANTS

The District received a grant from the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), indirectly through the

Washington State Military Department, for flood damage that occurred in 2006.  The District first

applied for assistance from FEMA at the time of the flood. However, the application was denied.  In 2011,

the District appealed the decision and was awarded a total of $1,373,430, which includes $168,618 from the

State Military Department and $168,618 contributed by the District. 

Schedule 16
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